CASH BOND AGENCY#: 162924/CRPD
RECOMMENDED: 5,000,00 '
BAIL: 5/4/15

MICHAEL A. HESTRIN FILED
DISTRICT ATTORNEY o AR

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA County of Riverside
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE ‘ 04/28/2016
(Riverside) YVONNE AYALA
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, |D.A# 361715
Plaintiff, | CASE NO. RIF160198&1
v, FELONY COMPLAINT
ELIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA | PC 1000 DIVERSION PC 1210.1 REFERRED
DOB:01/18/1993 Eligible _____ YES
NotEligible __X =~ NO X
Defendant. | Unknown if Eligible

COUNT 1

The undersigned, under penalty of perjury upon information and belief, declares: That the above named
defendant commitied a violation of Health and Safety Code section 11379, subdivision (a), a felony, in that on
or about February 16, 2016, in the County of Riverside, State of California, the defendant(s} did wilfully and
unlawfully sell, transport, furnish, administer, import, and give away, and offer to sell, transport, furnish,
administer, and give away a controlled substance, to wit, HYDROQCODONE, NORCO.

COUNT 2

That the above named defendant committed a violation of Penal Code section 487, subdivision (a), a
felony, in that on or about February 16, 2016, in the County of Riverside, State of California, the defendant(s)
did willfully and unlawfully steal and take and defraud mmoney, labor, real and personal property of RITE AlD,
of a value exceeding Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars (§950.00) to wit: PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.

COUNT 3

That the above named defendant committed a violation of Penal Code section 503, a felony, in that on or
about March 9, 2016, in the County of Riverside, State of California, the defendant(s) while in the employ of
RITE AID, did wilfully and unlawfully appropriate to her own use money and personal property of a value
exceeding Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00), to wit, PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.




Case #RIF1601981 Filing Date 04/28/2016

MARSY’S LAW

Information contained m the reports being distributed as discovery in this case may contain confidential
information protected by Marsy’s Law and the amendments to the California Constitution Section 28, Any
victim(s) in any above referenced charge(s) is entitled to be free from intimidation, harassment, and abuse. It is
unlawful for defendant(s), defense counsel, and any other person acting on behalf of the defendant(s) to use any
information contained in the reports to locate or harass any victim(s) or the victim(s)’s family or to disclose any
information that is otherwise privileged and confidential by law, Additionally, it is a misdemeanor violation of
California Penal Code § 1054.2a(3) to disclose the address and telephone number of a victim or witness to a

defendant, defendant’s family member or anyone else. Note exceptions in California Penal Code § 1054.2a(a)
and (2). -

I declare under penalty of perjury upon information and belief under the laws of the State of California
that the foregoing is true and correct.

Michael A, Hestrin
District Attorney

Dated: April 25,2016

By: Daima Calhoun
Deputy District Attorney
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. appnint one to represent me at no cnst tome, .
B. : ° f.’:ONsEQUENCES OF PLEA (1 through 5 a’pply to e\reryane)

‘ % 1. Asa convicted felon, | will-not be, abfe to) ewn bF POSSESS any ﬁrearm 1 will be ordered to pay
: restitution {o the victim(s) if the victim(s) suffered economic harmi, | agree that the amount of vielim
e © restitutivrs - . If the parties.do not agree, the probation’départment will determina the amount
- % ” if I digdagree with the amount I must promptiy réquest a hearing. -

TR
s e s * . - Mo e
. . “ 4 ": PR s * v T ‘<, MAY 0'4 21}15
SﬂPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, coum'v gr-’ RIVERSIDE -
‘ e Coa FELOMY PLEA FORM .
Peoplo v. // ‘Zfﬁj@ 7% 5 5'-’?—‘? r’" 7 it Case Number - /Z / F / éj{ 9672
A ADVISEMENT OF RIGHTS: - g
i 1. | have the right to 3 speedy and public trkal by a ju(ige or jusy. %
] 2. Atmytrial, | have the right to face and Cross-examine any v wltnesses agamst ine. —
i 3. [havethe iight to ask the coult t compei w;tnesses; to attenti iy trial at no expense o me, and to <
present evidence.in my defense, - . e
4. {havethe ﬂght against seif—incrimlnatmn. l pannot, he forced to lestity aqamst myseif. but 1 alsa have o
@ the right to testify ih my Swn defense’if { choose todo so, . . &
5. | have the right to be represented by a lawyer !hroughout my frial. -If | cannot, afford ohg, theoou:t will \@

. ©harges andfor enhancements may have been digmissed as part of this negotiated disposﬂton wllh the
District Attorney's Office. | agrae that | will be orderéd 16 pay restitution to the victim(s) of the
s . dismissed charges and/or anhansemems if the \!fntim(s} suffered egonomic harm, -
&‘ 3. lwill be ordered to pay & restitution fine of at least $240 and not more than $10, ODO There are several
Coe ' ofher finés and fees that wil be Imposed as a resulf of this guilty plea.
@, 4 1 am not a cltizén of the United States, | understand that this cor;vlctlon inay ba‘va the consequences
of deportation, exclusion from admission 1o the United States, or denial of naturalizatiols pursuant to the

laws of the United States. :

é 5 - 1 B, " if | keieeive & state prison term, | will'bé placed on parole or lotal community supervision after ©
complefing the term. Farole Gr local community supervision will be for the term specified by law
Generally, parole Is for up to five years and local community supervision Is for up to thrae years. If my
igrm of imprisonment Is ife, and | am ever granted parolé, It may be for life. If | violate any of the terms
of parcle, | could be returned to stale prison for up to one year per violation, If i violate. any of the terms
. oflocal oummumty supervision, | could be Incarcerated in county jall fof up to 180 days per violafion.

. If 1. am sentenced to county jail, a portion of my term may be suspended and, upon release from jal, |
may be piaced on mandatory supervision. If | viclate any of the terms and corwditions of my mandatory
" supenvision,, I'cotild be feturned to"county jall for iy fo théremaindér of my suspended Jall ferm.
. Lwill bs required to give a DNA sample.
. - My driving privileges will be suspanded or revoked by the Department of Motor Vehicles. . :
.« { understand that because 1 am p!eadlng gilty to a qualifying offense, 1 will be ordered to register with
lawenforcerient ds a(n) . : ... and that if | fail to regigter or to keep my registration
O ,cun'entfor any reagon, new criminal charges may be filed agamst me. | understand that registration as
8 sex offender is a life long requirement. ‘~», S
' .30, Lwill berequired to undergo AIDS testing. e :
L 11, Being urider the influence of alcohol of drugs, or both, if palrs ycsur abnlity to safely dperate a mntor

o vehiclé. Therelore, it is extremely dangerous to human iffe 1o drive while under the influence of algohol
R ordrugs, or both, " If | drive While under the Influence ‘of alcohui or drugs, or bvih and'ds a result nf that

‘ . driving, $tmeone i is killed, | can be charged With murder.
12 {Dthe!‘ . .

[+ SEFENDANT'S STATEMENT:

_ 6}5 _ 1. Allthe promises made to me are written on this form, or stated inopen court. .
2. No one has made any threats to me or anyone close to me, or placed any pressure of any kind on me
in order to make me plead gulity.

Appreved for Optional Uger
Hivarida Superior Court . ) .
"GHODY (Rov. 111712} “Pagefof2




People v. £2“ / Z7f‘ f[ '7?.71 &4’&‘5@@4 Case Numbsr @ 4 F / é@/ C;(P' l'v .

.80 understand that Ef } violate any of my probation terms, | could be sentenced to the maximum -
%z‘ _ custody term possible under thesé charges as set forth under “Plea Agreement”, ltem 2.
A 4. |have had adequate time fo discuss with my attorney (1) my constitutional rights, (2) the
E?” conssquences of any guilty plea, and (3) any defenses | may have fo the charges against me.

As part of this plea, | (clrele vé) o not waive any right to ‘appésal that | may have,
@ 6 Factual Basis: 1agree that | did Ings that are stated in the charges that | am admlttinga

PL.EA AGREEMENT
1. . lwilt enter arguilly plea to the following charges,and enhancements: '
Cr— [ op P - )RS W?Krf/
S 508

The Prcsecptor wii! dismigs ¢ dny chargaa and ‘ghhancements that ldo nut admii . ‘
2, The maximum possib!e custody commitment for the admitted chargas ahd anhaneemams is: /f 7 RS M
3.7 My guillty pleas aré ﬁonditlonai on réce lving ths fol Iow:ng considemtiens ag'to sentence )

" @& - Formal proballon will (circle ong) be 1) dafiie& 2) granted; 8) decided by tie court lf grantad the iength of
formal probation may be up to five years, prrobatlon is granted,-a suspended state prison sentence or
felony county Jail term (circle one) williwill not be Impused.. A suspended felony county jalfterm may .. - -
include a perlod of mandatory supervision for up to the remainder of the suspended ]all term, The fo!iow'ing
fegal+ reslrluttons apply to'd déclsion to gran probation in this this case; .

by The custody termgﬂli_hg, '-__'i/' . / 4‘“«’-"»/?* - - (sii;;);
' The custody term shall-not be More than__7 a e (op)
) Thacusto&yterm shaii not be_l’gg__ihﬁn e IS {floor) .
) Flnas,.u . . ‘

-_,fr; 77 = //,

days i 4019 D 2933'

) Other -j’fz*? ‘72&'0 &

ce e,)‘ Credltfor time served will be [ da “ actual
S SIGNATURES & .

District Attorney; The abo);é is 'correct statement of the Plea Agreement between d_efené}a émi prbseéuﬂon. '

total.

ot

Date .. T PnntNama . Signmame

Dafendant. [ newe read and unﬂe:stand this entim dacument { walve and give up all of the ﬁghta that 1 have mmafed; ]

accep this Plea Agresment. £y ‘
Aﬂ?ﬁ ‘ -

Kb - 2 44y
. - . SIQnName'

Date

nefense Attorhey: | am the attorney for the defencfan% I am satisfied that {f) ﬂaa deferedant underslands higther-
constitutional rights and understand that a guiity-plea would be a walver of these rights; (2) the defendant hag had‘é‘a

adequate-oppottunity to discuss hisfher casé with We, Including any defenses he/she may have fo the charges; and (3) the
défendant understands lhe cons QW hls!her guilly plea, | join in thedaelsion-of the defamiant 1o enter a quiity plea,

/é

Date .o . PrintName . - ' . T -Sign Name

interpreter: Havmg been duly sworn, | have irans‘!atad this fom to the defendant in the K . language.
The defendant has statad that he/she fally understmd the gontents of the form prior to signing. ,

Date - Print Name T . Sign Name - . -

Approved for Optionul Use . -
Rivorside Suparier Court N .
CRODF{Ftav. 1471112) . ) . Page2of2
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People v. ELIZABETH ASHLEY
BEGERRA

Case Number RIF1601981

[ mspemEANOR ] FELONY

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE
SENTENCING MEMORANDUM

THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS
ARE ORDERED BY THE COURT

Page 1 of2

Proceadings are suspanded.(PAS)
Formal probation granted for 36 mantha {FPG)
Chey all laws, ordinances, and eourt orders. (T1)

Charges admitied; I; 11378(a} H&S; |II; 803 PC

CUSTODY { WORK PROGRAMS / COMMUNITY SERVICE

Be committad to the custody of RSO for 180 days.{TAA)

Cradit time sarved 1 days aciual + 0 days PC § 4018.(CT8) _

Custody to be servad as follows:

179 days 1o be sarved in the\WerkeRelease Program, Repori on or hefore

6/27/12016.(TAJ1)

FINES f FEES { RESTITUTION All fines, fees, and restifulion imposed shall be paid te the Court, as directed by the Enhanced Collections Diviskon

Pay booking fees of $ 423.82 (GC § 20550).(TXV1) Pay victim restltufion; amount to be delarmined by the Probation Depaitment;

Pay restitution fina of $ 300.00 (PC § 1202.4(b).{TYC) disputes as to the amount to be resolved al a court hearing (PC § 1203.1(a)

Pay probation revocation restifution fine of § 300,00 (PC § 1202.44). Stayad }(3)){TCB/RZ)

pending compietion of probation.(TYF/1) If your fine{s} or actual restitution is hot paid in full move than 120 days before
completion of probation you are ordered to re-contact Enhancad Gollections -
and complete a new Financial Disclosure Statement form (PC § 1202.4(1)
(1)) {TYGIA)
Report tolcooperate with Enhanded Collections immediataly or within two
business days of release from custody (IDORECD)

DRUG 7 SEARCH / TEST PROGRAM TERMS

Do not kiowingly Lse of possess any controliad substances, unless legally | Partisioate and complete at your expensa any counseling,

prescribed for you{TDL1} rehabilitation/treatment, program deemed appropriale by probation officar;

Submit to chemical test of your biood, saliva, breath or urine or any and authorize release of information relative to progress.(THF/A)

reasonable physical test upon request of any law enforcement or probation

officer.{TEC)

Bubmit to Immediate search of parson/properly Including alt

residences/premises/storage units, containers, & vehiclas under your conirol

by, Probation Officer or law enforcemant officer, with or without cause.

{TEA1/A)

Provide 8 DNA sample as directed by probation or law enforcement

personnel (PC § 206{a)}.(TEF2)

*Submit proof of enroliment andfor completion of the above noted programs as direcled by your Prabation Officer and/or Alternativeé Sentencing.

ASSQCIATION / RESIDENCE / WORK TERMS

De not asscclate Wil unrelated grson you know to be robat] on of linform the probation officer of your place of residence and reside at residence

parole.{THO) y g}v 3 gjproved by the probation officer. (THC)

Do not asseciate wi any unre ate sDngo tobea passessor ive written nofice to the probation officer 24 hours before changing your

user or trafficker of controlled 5ubstancas DK} rasidenca and do not mova without the approvat of the probalion officer.

Da not ieave the State of California without first obtammg wrilten permission | {THC1)

of the probation department per the inlerstale Compact Act{THR) Seek and maintain employment or attend a full time schao! or vocational
pregram.(THB)

ADDITIONAL PROBATION TERMS ,

Othar: THI1/A-DO NOT OWN OR HAVE AGCESS TO ANY FIREARMDEADLY WEAPON, AMMUNITION, OR INCERDIARY REVICES.

ADDITIQNAL FORMAL PROBATION TERMS

If expelled or deported, do not re-enfer the united States illegally, (THM1) Report to prebation officor immediately or upon release from custody, and

If expelied, deported, or voluntarily leave the United States, you must report  { ablde by &ll reascnable diractives of probation officer.(THL)

to probation by {elephone or in writing within 30 days of departure.{THNZ2) Reporl any faw enforcement contacts o probation officer within 48 hours.
{THI)

http://riv-app4/sentencingmemo/RIF 160198 1 ELIZABETHY20ASHLEY%... 5/16/2016
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%

4w SBUPERIOR GOURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

Page 2of 2 SENTENCING MEMORANDUM .
People REUZABETH ASHLEY ' Case Number RIF16019881
ADDIT{ONAL ORDERS OF THE COURT ] _ )
Pay courl oparauans assassment fae of $40 par convicted chargs (PC§ Pay the costs of probation supervision In an amount to be determinad by
1465.8),{TXX} Prabation, Based.on the level of supervision, the costs will.range from
Pay courf coniviclion assessment fee of 530 per convicted $591.12 io $3744.00 (PC § 1205.1H).{TXMIA)
misdemeanoiifelony charge (GG § 70373){TXW) Pay the aclual ¢ést of sourt ardered drug testing through the ouurt 86 dlrected
Pay drsg lab fae and penafty asesessment fee.of $180 (H&S §11372.5). by Enhenced Collections {TEE)
{TBAL) ) -
Pay drug education fee and penalty asssessment fed of $190 (H&S § i 4
11372.7).(IBBL) )

_ T . ) Revised 0412113 CRODZ
|.have read, | understand, and | accept these terms and condilions of probation on pages ena and two. %
Defendant: Q_M % ) Defenss Atomey:

_/ —

Districl Aftornay: _ _ : . Imerprater: _ _ .
Dated: IT (5 50 ORDERED: JUDIGIAL OFFICER

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: If you have been placed on probation, you have tha right to ask the court elthar (1) 1o allow you fo withdraw your plea of guilty of
of nolo contandre and o enter a plea of not guilty, or (2) if you wera-cenvicted after a plea of not guilty, to set eslde the verdict of guilly, (For details, see
Pengl Code section 1203.4. If you have besh convicted of & misdemeanor and not placed on probation, and one year has passed since proncuncement of
Judgment you have the right to make a similar request, (For details, see Penal Code saclion 1203.44.) Forms on which to make such faquests are available
in the clerk's office. .

http:/riv-app4/sentencingmemo/RIF1601981 ELIZABETHY%20ASHLEY%... 5/16/2016
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- BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Cage No. 5951
ELIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA : DEFAULT DECISIOIN AND ORDER
1794 OQhio Street '
Riverside, CA 92507 [Gov. Code, §11520]
Pharmacy Techuician Registration
No. TCH 126156 :

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Onorabout October 14, 2016, Complainant Viré;inia K. Herold, in her oﬁiciﬂ )
capacity as thé Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of Consumer
Affairs, filed Accusation No, 5951 against Elizabeth Ashley Becerra (Respondent). (A copy of
the Accusation is aftached as Fxhibit A.) _

2. - Onor about September 6, 2012, the Boatd issued Pharmacy Technician
Regié[;rﬁtion No. TCH 126156 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Technician Reéistration expired on
January 31; 2016, and has not i)een renewed. Section 4300.1 of the Code provides, in pertinent
patl, that the expiration of a license or registration shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to '
commence or proceed with disciplinary proceeding against the licensee.

3. On or about October 24, 2016, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class

| Mail copies of the Accusation No. 5951, Stalement to Respondent, Nolice of Defense, Request

1

T

(BLIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA) DEFAULT DECISION & ORDER Case No, 5951
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for Discovery, and Discovery Statutes (Government Code secti.ons 11507.5, 11507.6, and
11507.7) at Respondeant’s address of record which, pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 4100, is required to be reported and maintained with the Board., Respondent's address of
record was and {s:
1794 Ohio Street
Riverside, CA 92507

4.  Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) and/or Business & Professions Code section

124.

5. Onor about October 27,2016, the aforementioned docurﬁents served by Certified
Mail were delivered to Respondent’s address of record.

6.  Government Code section 11506(c) states, in pertinent part:

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to'a hearing on the merits if the respondent
files a notice of defense . .. and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all
parts of the accusation . . . not expressly admitted. Failure fo file a notice of defense
... shall constitute a waiver of respondent's right {o a hearing, but the agency in its
discretion may nevertheless grant'a hearing,
7.  Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon her of
the Accusation, and therefore waived her right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 5951.

8.  California Government Code section 11520(a) states, in pertinent part:
(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense . .. or to appear af
the hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express

admissions or apon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without
any notice to respondent . ., .

9, Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds
Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without fﬁrther hearing and, based on the -
relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well as
taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and sfatements contained therein on
file at the Board's offices regarding the allepations contained in Accusation No, 5951, finds that
the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 5951, are separately and severally, found to be frue

and carrect by clear and convincing evidence.
2
(ELIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA) DEFAULT DECISION & ORDER Case No, 5951
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10.  Taking offi¢ial notice of its own internal records, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 125.3, it is héreby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation
and Enforcement is $806.80 as of November 28, 2016.

| DETERMINATION OF ISSUES -

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Blizabeth Ashley Becerra has
subjected her Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 126156 to discipline.

2. The agency has juris.diction to adjudicate this case by defaulf.

3. "The Board of Pharmacy is authorizgd fo revoke Respondent's Pharmacy Technician
Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported
by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Investigatory Bvidence Packet in this case.

~a. Respondent has subjected hér registration to discipline under sections 490 and
4301(1) of the Code in that on ot about May 4,2016, in & criminal proceeding entitle(_{ People of
the State of California v, Elizabeth Ashley Becerra, in Riverside County Superior Court, case
number RIF1601981, Respondent was convicted on her plea of guilty to violating Health and
Safety Code section 11379(a), the untawful selling/transporting/fnrnishing/administc;ring of
hydrocodone and Norco; and Penal Code section 503, embezzlement of prescription drugs, |
felonies, crimes substantially related to the qualifications, duties, and functions of a pharmﬁcy
technician,

b, Respéndent has subjected her registration to discipline under section 4301(f) of

‘the Code for unprofessional conduct in that she stole controlled substances and dangerous drugs

from her employer/pharmacy using fraud, deceit, and dishonesty.

c.  Respondent has subjected her registl'étion to discipline under section 4301(j) of

the Code for unprofessional corduct in that she knowingly violated Business and Professions

Code sections 4022, 4059, and 4060; and Health and Safety Code section 11379.

d.  Respondent has subjected her registraiion to discipline under section 4301{0) of
the Code in that her conduct violated Title 21 U.S.C. section 843(a)(3), Board of Pharmacy
Regulations (California Code of Regulations, Title 16, Section 1700, et seq.), and the C‘aliforﬁia

Uniform Controlled Substances Act (Health and Safety Code 11000, et seq.).
' 3

(ELIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA) DEFAULT DECISION & ORDER Case No. 5951
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ORDER _
IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician Registration No, TCH 126156, héretofore
issued to Respondent Flizabeth Ashley Becetra, is revoked.
Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a
wriften motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within
seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute,

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on January 23, 2017.
It is so ORDERED on December 23, 2016. |

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Aqhe

By
Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
DOT Matter ID; SD2016702206
Attachment:
Exhibit A: Accusation
4

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
ANTOWETTE B, CINCOTTA.
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 120482
600 West Broadway, Suite 1800
San Diego, CA 92101 :
P.O. Box 85266
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: (619) 738-9457
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061

Atiorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No., 5951

FLIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA
1794 Ohio Street
Riverside, CA 92507

ACCUSATION

Pharmacy Techrician Registration
No. TCH 126156

Respondent.

Complainant alfeges:

PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in hér official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of Consumer Affairs;

2. On or about September 6, 2012, the Board issued Pharm:icy Technician Registration
Number TCH 126156 to Elizabeth Ashley Becerra (Respondent). The Pharmacy Technician
Registration expired on Januafy 31, 2016, and was not rencwed, The Pharmacy Technician
Registration was cancelled on May 1, 2016,

111 "
i1

(ELIZABETH ASHLEY BECERRA) ACCUSATION B
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JURISDICTION
3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following
laws. All section references are to the Business an<l Professions Code (Codej unless other;fvise_
indicated,
4. Section 4300, subdivision {a) of the Code states: “Every license issued mefy be
suspended or revoked.”

5. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of'a board-issued ficense by
operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a courtof law, the placement of a
license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licenses shall not
deprive the board of jurisdiction to conunence or proceed with any investigation of, ot
action ot disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending
ar revoking the license.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS
6.  Section 482 of the Code states:

Each board under the provisions of this code shall develop criteria to evaluate the
- rehabilitation of a person when: '

(a) Considering the denial of a license by the board under Section 480; or-
(b) Considering suspension or revocation of a license under Seetion 490

Fach board shall take into account all competent evidence of rehabilitation
furnished by the applicant or licensee. .

7. Section 490 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that a board may suspend or
revoke a ficense on the ground that the Ticensee has been convicted of a crime substantially
related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for which the
license was tssued.

8. Section 493 of the Code states:

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, in a proceeding conducted by a board
within the department pursuant to law to deny an application for a license or to suspend
or revoke a license or otherwise take disciplinary action against a person who holds a
license, upon the ground that the applicant or the licensee has been convioted of a crime
substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of the licensee in
question, the record of conviction of the crime shall be conclusive evidence of the fact
that the conviction ocoutred, but only of that fact, and the board may inquire into the
eircumstances surrounding the commission of the crime in order to fix the degree of

2
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discipline or to determine if the conviction is substantially related to the qualifications,
functions, and duties of the licensee in question.

As used in this section, “license” includes “certificate,” “permit,” “authority,” and
(1] H .t‘ ” p H
registration. ~

9, Sectioh 4022 of the Code states

"Dangerous drug” or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe for
self-use in humans or animais, and includes the following:

(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal Iaw prohibits dispensing
without preseription," "Rx only," or words of similar import, :

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts this device

to sale by or on the order of a ," "Rx only," or words of similar import, the
blank to be filled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or order use

of the device,

(¢) Any other dzug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully dispensed
only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006, .

10.  Section 4059 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that a person may not furnish any
dangerous drug except upon the preseription of a physician, dentist, podiatrist, optometrist,
veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor.

11, Section 4060 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that.no person shall possess any

controlled substance, except that furnished to a person upon the prescription of a physician,

dentist, podiatrist, optometrist, veterinarian, or naturopathic doctor.

12, Section 4301 of the Code states:

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of

unprofessional conduct or whose licenss has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation

- or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of
the following: : ' : :

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit,
or corrupbion, whether the act is commitied in the course of relations as a licensee or -
otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not,

{j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the
United States regulating conirolled substances and dangerous drugs.
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(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions,
and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of
Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code
regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating
controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional
conduct, In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of
the fact that the conviction occurted. The board may inquire into the circumstances
surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in |
the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to
determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications,
functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a
conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemmed to be a conviction within the
meaning of this provision. The board may take actioh when the time for appeal hag
elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has besn affirmed on appeal or when at-order
granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a

" subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to

withdraw his or her plea of guilty and o enier a plea of not guilty, or seiting aside the
verdict of puiity, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment,

(0) Vioiating or afttempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the viclation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter oz
of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including
regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency. ..

13, Health and Safety Code section 11379, subdivision () states:

Except as otherwise provided in subdivision (b) and in Article 7 (commencing with
Section 4211) of Chapter 9 of Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code, every
person who transports, imports into this state, sglls, furnishes, administers, or gives
away, or offers to transport, import into this stats, sell, furnish, administer, or give away,
or aftempts fo import into this state or transport any controlled substance which is (1)
classified in Schedule 111, TV, or V and which is not a narcotic drug, except subdivigion
(g) of Section 11056, (2) specified in subdivision (d) of Section 11054, except

- paragraphs (13), (14), (15), (20), (21), (22), and (23) of subdivision (d), (3) specified in

paragraph (11) of subdivision (c) of Section 11056, (4) specified in paragraph (2y or (3)
of subdivision {f) of Section 11054, or (5) specified in subdivision (d} or (), except
paragraph (3) of subdivision (e), or specified in subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1} of
subdivision (f), of Seotion 11055, unless upon the prescription of a physician, dentist,

odiatrist, or veterinarian, licensed to practice in this state, shall be punished by
mmprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170 of the Penal Cede for a period
of two, three, or four years. :

t4.  United States Code, title 21, section 843 states, in pertinent part:

() It shall be unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionaily —

(3} to acquire or obtain possession of a controtled substance by
misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge. . . .
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REGULATORY PROVISIONS
15.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1769, subdivision (b) states:

(b} When considering the suspension or revocation of a facility or a personal
License on the ground that the licensee or the registrant has been convicted of a crime,
the board, in evaluating the rehabilitation of such person and his present eligibility for a
license will consider the following criteria: :

(1) Nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s).
(2) Total criminal record.
(3) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or offense(s).

(4) Whether the licensee has complied with all ferms of parole, probation,
restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the licensee.

(5) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the licensee. _

16, California Codo of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions
Code, a ctime or act shall be considersd substantially related to the qualifications,
functions or duties of a licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences
present or potential unfitness of a licensee or registrant to perform the functions
authorized by his license or registration in a manner consistent with the public health,
safety, or welfare, ' :

COSTS
17 Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the Iicensi.ng act 1o pay a-sum not 1o exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case, with failure of the licentiate to comply subjecting the license to not
being renewed or réinstated. If a cast setiles, recovery of investigation and eﬁforcement costs
may be included in a stipulated settlement. |
DRUGS
18. Hydrocodone is a Schedule 11 controlled substance as, designated by Health and
Safety Code section 11055, subdivision (b)(1)(1), and is a dangerous drug pursuant to Business

and Professions Code section 4022. 7

19.  Hydrocodone bitartate with acetaminophen (hydrocodone APAP), sold

commercially as Norco, is a Schedule IT controlled substance as designated by Title 21, Code of .

5
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Federal Regulations section 1308.12, subdivision- {b)( 1){vi), and it is designated as a Schedule III
controlied substance under (California) Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision (e)(4).
It is a dangerous drug putsuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022,
20. Oxycodone is a Schedule H controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety
Code section 11055; subdivision (b}(1)(M), and is a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4022 .
_ 21.  Sildenafll citrate, sold commercially as Viagra, is & dangerous drug pursuant to

Business and Professions Code section 4022.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{May 4, 2016 Criminal Convictions for Unlawful Slales/Transportation of Controlled
Substances & Embezzlement of Prescription Drugs)
2. ~ Respondent has subjected her_registraﬁon 10 discipline under sections 490 and 4301,

subdivision (1) of the Code in that she was convicted of crimes that are substantially related to the

qualifications, duties, and functions of a pharmacy technician. The circumstances are as follows: |

a. On or anu’g May 4, 2016, in a criminal proceeding entitled People of the Siate
of C’él;‘fom.t‘a v. Elizabeth dshley Becerra, in Riverside County Superior Court, case number
RiF 1601981, Respondent was convicted 01.1 her plea of guilty t(; vio]ating Health and Safety Code
section 11379, subdivision (a), willful, unlawful s-eiling]transporting/fumishing/administel‘ing a

controlled substance, to wit, hydrocodone and Norco, and Penal Code section 503, embezzlement

- of prescription drugs in excess of $400, felonies. Pursuant to Respondent’s plea agreement, the

court dismissed an additional felony count of prescription drug embezzlement (Pen. Code, § 503).

b.  Asaresult of the convictions, on May 17, 2016, Respondent was granted

formal probation for 36 months, and she was committed 1o the custody of the sheriff in their

Electronic Monitoring Program (ankle bracelet). Respondent was ordered to pay foes and fines,
and restitution to the victim, submit to a Fourth Amendment waiver, abstain from the use or .
possessjon of illegal controlled substances, submit to random drug tests, and additional conditions

of felony probation.,

At

6
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c. The facts that led to the convictions ave that on or about March 9, 2016, an
investigator with the Corona Police Department responded to a Rite Aid pharmecy in response to
a report of embezzlement. The pharmacy’s loss prevention manager told the 'invesﬁgator that he
began to investigate the foss of Viagra and discovered that Réspondent, one of their pharmacy
technicians, had been stealing drugs from the pharmacy. The loss prevention manager reviewed -
surveillance video and discovered evidence of Respondent stealing drugs. Respondent also made
a hand-written confession and admitted to taking Viagra, oxycodone, hydrocodone, and cough -
syrup with codeine. Respondent told the investigator she stole medications because she needed
SOme extra money. Respondent stated she would take tablets from prescription bottleg that had
already been filled, and that she would sel] Viagré.and Noroo tablets for $5 each, hydrocodone

for $4, and cough syrup for $50 a bottle.
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Comimission of Acts Involving Dishonesty, Fraud, Decejt & Corruption)

23. Resﬁondent has subjected her registration to discipline under section 4301,
subdivisi o'n () of the Code for unprofessional conduct in that she stofe controlled substances and
dangerous drugs from her employer/pharmacy using fraud, deceit, and dishonesty, as described in

parééraph 22, above,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE,

(Violation of California Statutes Regulating Controlled Substances)

24.  Respondent has subjected hor registration to diseipline under section 4301,

subdivision {j) of the Code for unprofessional conduct in that she knowingly violated Business

and Professions Code sections 4022, 4059, and 4060; and Health and Safety Code section 11379,

as described in paragraph 22, above.
FOURTH CAUSE FOR DIS CIPLINE
(Violatin;g Federal & State Laws & Regulations Governing Pharmﬁey)
25.  Respondent has subjeétéd her registration to discipline under section 4301,
subdi\fision (o) of the Code for' unprofesstonal conduct in that she violated Title 21 U.S.C, section
843, subdivision (a)(3), Board of Pharmacy Regulations (California Code éf Regulations, Title

7
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16, Section 1700; ef seq.), and the California Uﬁiform Controlled Substances Act (Health and
Safety Code 11000, et Seq..), when he obtained controlled substances using fraud and deceit, as
described in paragraph 22, abovs. -
| | PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Registration Number TCH 126156,
issued to Elizabeth Ashley Beoerra; _ |

| 2, Ordering Eliéabath Ashley Becerra to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable . ‘

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursnant to Business and Professions

3. Taking such other and further action as desmed necessary and proper.

patep: ! O// X%/ 6 Gl
VIRGINIA HEROLD
‘ Executive Officer
Beard of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

SDz016702206
81478072 . doc
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